
MINUTES 

MONTANA SENATE 
55th LEGISLATURE - REGULAR SESSION 

COMMITTEE ON LOCAL GOVERNMENT 

Call to Order: By CHAIRMAN TOM BECK, on March 6, 1997, at 3:10 
p.m., in Room 405. 

ROLL CALL 

Members Present: 
Sen. Thomas A. "Tom" Beck, Chairman (R) 
Sen. Dorothy Eck (D) 
Sen. Sharon Estrada (R) 
Sen. Wm. E. "Bill" Glaser (R) 
Sen. Don Hargrove (R) 
Sen. John "J.D." Lynch (D) 
Sen. Walter L. McNutt (R) 
Sen. Fred R. Van Valkenburg (D) 

Members Excused: Sen. Mike Sprague, Vice Chairman (R) 

Members Absent: None 

Staff Present: Martha Colhoun, Legislative Services Division 
Jodi Jones, Committee Secretary 

Please Note: These are summary minutes. Testimony and 
discussion are paraphrased and condensed. 

Committee Business Summary: 
Hearing(s) & Date(s) Posted: 

Executive Action: 

HB 64, HB 205, HB 229 
Posted: 2/24/97 

HB 64 
HB 205 
HB 229 
HB 255 

To Be Concurred In 
To Be Concurred In 
Tabled 
Re-Tabled 

EXECUTIVE ACTION ON HB 255 

Motion: 

SENATOR DOROTHY ECK MOVED TO TAKE HB 255 OFF OF THE TABLE. 

Discussion: 

CHAIRMAN TOM BECK asked if the committee could wait until after 
the hearing of the bills to do executive action on HB 255. 

SENATOR ECK withdrew her motion. 

970306LG.SM1 



SENATE LOCAL GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE 
March 6, 1997 

Page 2 of 11 

HEARING ON HB 205 

Sponsor: REPRESENTATIVE ROYAL JOHNSON, HD 10, Billings 

Proponents: 

Charles Brooks, Yellowstone Co. 
Gordon Morris, MT Assoc. of Counties 
Alec Hansen, MT League of Cities and Towns 

Opponents: None 

Opening Statement by Sponsor: 

REPRESENTATIVE ROYAL JOHNSON, HD 10, Billings, presented HB 205. 
He said this bill came about as a result of a conversation with 
the Deering Clinic on the South side of Billings. Health clinics 
are service providers and are city county health department 
contractors. They can get a multi-jurisdictional district if all 
organizations agree on what they want to do. The bill simply adds 
line 22 which states "health services and health department 
functions". This is being done currently in Yellowstone Co. 
between the county, Laurel and the City of Billings. The Deering 
Clinic has an interesting program because they are composed of a 
number of different providers. They not only provide for city 
county health departments, but they also have other kinds of 
providers that work out of the same building. Rather than go 
through the authority law, this bill will simplify the matter. It 
is an opportunity for other cities and towns to work together on 
whatever function they feel is needed. 

Proponents' Testimony: 

Charles Brooks, Yellowstone Co., spoke in favor of HB 205. He 
presented a letter from the County of Yellowstone (EXHIBIT 1) . 

Gordon Morris, MACo, supported HB 205. This law was first passed 
in 1985 dealing with multi-jurisdictional service district areas. 
The bill is straight forward and simply adds line 22. When the 
bill was introduced in 1985 the language ended on line 12 and 
since then, as clean up measures, lines 13-21 have been added. He 
urged passage of this bill. 

Alec Hansen, MT League of Cities and Towns, said they supported 
the initial bill back in 1985. This law has not been used broadly 
in the State of Montana but it is a very good idea. It is a good 
way to ensure people using these particular services are the ones 
that cover the cost. In terms of health services, this will work 
very effectively. He said in Helena, the south part of the county 
is where most of the population is and if a library district is 
set up, those people can use the library and the people in 
Augusta don't have to pay for the library because of the service 
district. 

970306LG.SM1 



SENATE LOCAL GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE 
March 6, 1997 

Page 3 of 11 

Q2Ronents' Testimony: None 

Questions From Committee Members and Responses: 

SENATOR DOROTHY ECK asked do we have any multi-jurisdictional 
areas that include more than one county. Gordon Morris said yes 
the state does, there are regional juvenile detention facilities 
organized under this bill. 

Closing by Sponsor: 

REP. JOHNSON closed on HB 205. 

EXECUTIVE ACTION ON HB 205 

Motion/Vote: 

SENATOR J.D. LYNCH MOVED HB 205 BE CONCURRED IN. MOTION CARRIED 
UNANIMOUSLY. 

{Tape: 1; Side: A; Approx. Time Count: 3:19 p.m.; Comments: .J 

HEARING ON HB 64 

Sponsor: REPRESENTATIVE DAVID EWER, HD 53, Helena 

Proponents: 

Newell Anderson, MT Department of Commerce 
Alec Hansen, MT League of Cities and Towns 
Gordon Morris, MT Assoc. of Counties 

Opponents: None 

Opening Statement by Sponsor: 

REPRESENTATIVE DAVID EWER, HD 53, Helena presented HB 64. He said 
this bill eliminates the amount of auditing we do for local 
governments. There is a single audit act in Montana that was 
passed two years ago that brought in both state and federal 
aUditing requirements. The federal government said any federal 
assistant in excess of $25,000 needs to be audited. The federal 
government recently revised this to an excess of $200,000. The 
board of investments have a lot of requests from small 
governments for loans. The most common are service areas and 
rural fire districts. He said these requests are small and when 
you think what it costs to have an audit it costs more than their 
budget will allow. 

Proponents' Testimony: 

Newell Anderson, MT Department of Commerce, spoke in favor of HB 
64. He said the Federal government changed the minimum 
requirements for financial aide before having an audit. The state 

970306LG.SMl 



SENATE LOCAL GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE 
March 6, 1997 

Page 4 of 11 

would like to also bring their audit requirements up to 
compliance with the federal government. 

Alec Hansen, MT League of Cities and Towns, supported HB 64. 
There are many small towns in Montana that are subject to audits 
by the State of Montana. He said one small town was spending 40 
perce~t of its general budget fund every two years on the audit 
alone. 

Gordon Morris, MT Assoc. of Counties, said their organization 
supports HB 64. 

Opponents' Testimony: None 

Questions From Committee Members and Responses: 

SENATOR LYNCH asked what was the present language. REPRESENTATIVE 
EWER said it read $25,000. 

SENATOR LYNCH asked if the $200,000 was there before. REP. EWER 
said it was already there and the judge has set this limit. 

Closing by Sponsor: 

REP. EWER closed on HB 64. 

EXECUTIVE ACTION ON HB 64 

Motion/Vote: 

SENATOR LYNCH MOVED HB 64 BE CONCURRED IN. MOTION CARRIED 
UNANIMOUSLY. 

{Tape: 1; Side: A; Approx. Time Count: 3:25 p.m.; Comments: .J 
HEARING ON HB 229 

Sponsor: REPRESENTATIVE JOHN COBB, HD 50, Augusta 

Proponents: 

Gordon Morris, MT Assoc. of Counties 
Alec Hansen, MT League of Cities and Towns 

Opponents: 

Tom Harrison, MT Society of CPA's 

Opening Statement by Sponsor: 

REPRESENTATIVE JOHN COBB, HD 50, Augusta spoke in favor of HB 
229. This bill creates a local government operation review 
program to be conducted on a contract basis by the legislative 

970306LG.SMI 



SENATE LOCAL GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE 
March 6, 1997 

Page 5 of 11 

audit division and participating local governments. This would 
allow local governments to contract if they wish but to have the 
legislative audit division review local government operations. 
This is the same type of review happening in performance audits, 
not financial audits, which local governments already do. This 
bill would be like a performance audit where individuals go out 
and see if a program is working or not. The legislative audit 
division does about 10 to 15 performance audits for state 
government every year. Right now there are very few private 
performance audits going on in local governments. This would 
encourage private audits to start happening which would be 
cheaper financially. Local governments would have to request an 
audit done and pay for it. This bill is not intended to give more 
work to the legislative audit division, but intended to encourage 
performance audits. The legislative audit office said the only 
time they would help local governments is if they are doing a 
similar audit in the same area the local government was located. 
Otherwise, local governments would use their contracting process, 
just as they do with financial audits. In the legislative audit's 
office, each individual has different qualifications and not just 
anybody can do these audits. 

Proponents' Testimony: 

Gordon Morris, MACo, spoke in favor of HB 229. This is an 
operations audit but should be a management audit. The audit 
division goes into an operation and looks at procedures and makes 
recommendations for how they can be improved. The private sector 
is not in the practice of doing this and it would be beneficial 
to local governments, particularly from a technical assistance 
point of view to get a reasonable rate. 

Alec Hansen, MT League of Cities and Towns, said small towns 
could benefit from a performance or management audit. This bill 
could save money for local governments. This audit will only be 
done at the request of the local government and the state will 
have no other involvement. 

Opponents' Testimony: 

Tom Harrison, MT Society of CPAs, said their organization is 
involved in financial audits and not in operation audits. They 
are concerned with this bill because it is poor public policy. 
This bill is a good idea if the state has the people to do this, 
but if they don't, then this is not good public policy. If the 
state legislative auditor's office has people with time on their 
hands then this bill should be in appropriations. However, the 
legislative auditor's office has problems just keeping people on 
staff. It is very confusing to keep track of who did and didn't 
request these people and will only be confusing and not clear as 
to who has the responsibility. 

970306LG.SMI 



SENATE LOCAL GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE 
March 6, 1997 

Page 6 of 11 

Questions From Committee Members and Responses: 

SENATOR LYNCH said cities can use the state contracting process, 
can't they contract by themselves also? REP. COBB said yes they 
can contract privately. This bill is not mandating, they have to 
contract with the state. 

SENATOR LYNCH said there is always a battle over how many 
legislative auditors there should be. When asked to do 
performance audits for local governments who will be around to 
say they don't need FTE's to do this. He said there should never 
be an FTE hired under this bill. REP. COBB said this was correct, 
there are less auditors than a couple of years ago. 

SENATOR LYNCH said it should be mentioned that FTEs not be added 
for this function. This is another justification for asking for 
more auditors. 

SENATOR DON HARGROVE asked about the bid process. REP. COBB said 
local governments have their own bid contracting, or if they use 
the state bidding process the legislative audit office will bid 
them out. They will do this with financial audits or audits most 
anyone would be qualified to do as it is cheaper to bid them out. 

SENATOR HARGROVE asked would a county ask for a bid with this 
type of audit and would the legislative auditor compete with 
private. REP. COBB said currently they bid it out anyway, because 
they don't have the time or expertise. Basically, if they want to 
use the state bid process to find the best qualified for the 
least amount of money they can use it, if not they can do what 
they currently do at the local level. 

SENATOR HARGROVE asked if the legislative audit does these audits 
for the county currently. REP. COBB stated no. 

SENATOR HARGROVE said if this is a good idea, is legislation 
really necessary. If Lewis and Clark Co. wanted a state auditor 
and they had time, could they do it anyway. REP. COBB said he 
didn't think they should because they are restricted just to 
state audits. 

SENATOR ECK asked if there are organizations that do management 
audits. REP. COBB said not that he was aware of. There are some 
groups that will come in and do conSUlting, such as Human 
Services or the university system. This bill is designed to try 
and create a demand for more performance audits at the local 
government level. 

SENATOR ECK asked about larger businesses such as Montana Power 
being required to do a management audit. REP. COBB said he is not 
aware of any of these types of audits being required. 

SENATOR ECK said over the past few years there has been talk of 
reinventing government. Within county governments has there been 

970306LG.SM1 



SENATE LOCAL GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE 
March 6, 1997 

Page 7 of 11 

training to assist county officials to do their own management. 
Gordon Morris said MACa does a significant amount of training 
each year regarding new legislative issues and operational 
considerations. Other than the university, there is no other 
entity out there that can provide the type of investigation that 
is being intended under this bill. This would expand options for 
local governments. 

SENATOR FRED VAN VALKENBURG said what is the range of cost for 
doing a performance audit. REP. COBB said it can cost from a 
$1000 to $50,000 depending on the request. Often times they 
charge by the hour and also transportation and other overhead 
costs. 

SENATOR VAN VALKENBURG said for example, if you take a major city 
such as Billings or Missoula and they want an audit done on the 
health or police department, is this something the Legislative 
auditor has the capacity to undertake? REP. COBB said if it was 
related to juvenile justice they could maybe do this, otherwise, 
no it would be too big and cost too much. This idea came from New 
Jersey and their governor sent a team in to look at the whole 
government. We do not have the budget to do this, but we are 
trying to see if this is a good idea as states start giving more 
control to the counties and if more performance audits should be 
done to improve management. 

SENATOR VAN VALKENBURG said any money coming in to the 
legislative auditor would not be used to hire additional staff, 
it would cause a reversion of a General Fund appropriation that 
the legislature has made to the auditor's office. The auditor's 
office wouldn't be spending any extra money. He asked if they 
would be getting special fund money as opposed to General Fund 
revenue. REP. COBB said this is possible they could get money for 
financial audits, but performance audits are all General Fund 
monies. If they can save money by doing the same audit this money 
would revert. They would not hire an FTE though for just one 
audit because they don't have the spending authority. This bill 
says if they have the time and are doing something similar, 
otherwise it will be contracted out. 

SENATOR LYNCH wanted to know the difference between the education 
qualifications between a financial legislative auditor and a 
performance legislative auditor. REP. COBB said a performance 
auditor goes out and looks at a program to see how well it is 
working toward its goals, etc. 

SENATOR LYNCH asked if he was a college graduate looking for a 
job what qualifications qualify him to be a performance auditor 
rather than a financial auditor. REP. COBB said right now they 
learn to be a performance auditor by field experience as most are 
already financial auditors. 

970306LG.SMI 



SENATE LOCAL GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE 
March 6, 1997 

Page 8 of 11 

SENATOR LYNCH said there isn't any different college requirements 
to be a financial auditor compared to a performance auditor? REP. 
COBB said not that he was aware of. 

CHAIRMAN BECK asked if this bill passed through the House easily? 
REP. COBB said yes it did. The committee almost killed it with 
the same concerns discussed in this committee. 

Closing by Sponsor: 

REPRESENTATIVE COBB said this idea came out of New Jersey and he 
handed out New Jersey's local government budget review (EXHIBIT 
2). He closed on the bill. 

EXECUTIVE ACTION ON HB 255 

Motion/Vote: 

SENATOR ECK MOVED TO TAKE HB 255 OFF OF THE TABLE. MOTION PASSED 
5-3 ON A ROLL CALL VOTE (EXHIBIT 3). 

Motion: 

SENATOR LYNCH MOVED HB 255 BE TABLED. 

Discussion: 

SENATOR ECK said this is an unfunded mandate and the problem is 
many counties have not only the court house but many other 
buildings where people work. If they are required to have a 
smoking area and don't have the funds, it is expensive to set up 
a smoking area. 

SENATOR LYNCH said we are not requiring them to do this because 
they don't do it anyway and currently are not complying with the 
law. 

SENATOR ECK said when this bill was passed they did not have 
unfunded mandates. In most of these governments there is nothing 
they can do. They have freezes on what they can spend and have no 
alternative except to break the law. We don't want to mandate 
they break the law. 

CHAI~~ BECK asked Mike Griffith, Lewis and Clark Co. to explain 
the bill further. Mike Griffith said this bill isn't against 
smokers. It is about the counties breaking the law. Lewis and 
Clark county passed a resolution abolishing smoking in county 
buildings and it is an unfunded mandate. In order to stay in 
compliance with the law, the Lewis and Clark law enforcement 
building put out a bid for a proper ventilated smoking room. The 
low bid was $12,000 and this was one example of an unfunded 
mandate. There are other county buildings facing the same 
problems. He said federal regulations over-ride state law when it 
comes to smoking issues. He said smoking areas are usually in the 

970306LG.SM1 



SENATE LOCAL GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE 
March 6, 1997 

Page 9 of 11 

basement as it is in the federal building in Lewis and Clark Co. 
The cafeteria and computer center are adjacent to the smoking 
area. The employees that work in the computer center have 
complained of this smoking and the effects it has on them 
personally and on the computers. They recognize the current 
statute, and this bill only changes the language from shall to 
may. The counties will then have an option under this bill. 

{Tape: 1; Side: B; Approx. Time Count: 4:05 p.m.; Comments: .J 

SENATOR LYNCH said his only problem is the opponents are not here 
and they are just as important in this bill also. 

SENATOR BIll GLASER said Lewis and Clark county really irritates 
him as they have caused more problems this session. They need to 
act more civil to their citizens and logical to development. 

Vote: 

MOTION TO TABLE HB 255 PASSED 6-3 ON A ROLL CALL VOTE (EXHIBIT 
4) • 

EXECUTIVE ACTION ON HB 229 

Discussion: 

SENATOR ECK said this bill is evidence, performance audits change 
what happens. They are effective and useful, however we can not 
afford this bill. 

CHAIRMAN BECK said he questions the benefit of performance audits 
at the local level and how much demand there will be for this. 

SENATOR HARGROVE said there are a lot of things wrong with this 
bill. It is ahead of its time. There are compliance audits and 
they accomplish two things, it finds out what they are supposed 
to do and if they are doing what is appropriate. The question 
though, is there free time to do that, are FTEs involved, and how 
much should the state be involved. 

SENATOR GLASER said this is an opportunity for counties to ask 
the legislative auditor to start something, teach them and then 
bow out. They would not be there, unless the county asked for 
help. 

Motion: 

SENATOR GLASER MOVED HB 229 DO PASS. 

Discussion: 

SENATOR VAN VALKENBURG said private CPA's aren't in the business 
of providing performance audits. However, with the turnover in 
the legislative auditor's office there are plenty of people 

970306LG.SMI 



SENATE LOCAL GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE 
March 6, 1997 
Page 10 of 11 

coming out that could form an accounting firm and do this 
privately. This sounds like a legislative auditors empire 
building project and it wouldn't be good for anybody. 

Vote: 

MOTION TO DO PASS SB 229 FAILED 2-6 WITH SEN. GLASER AND ECK 
VOTING YES. 

Motion/Vote: 

SENATOR LYNCH MOVED TO TABLE SB 229. MOTION PASSED 6-2 WITH SEN. 
GLASER AND ECK VOTING NO. 

970306LG.SMI 



Adjournment: 4:15 p.m. 

TB/jj 

SENATE LOCAL GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE 
March 6, 1997 
Page 11 of 11 

ADJOURNMENT 

(' 
SEN :=- ~o1J[fs :JL V;:~ 

A/ "TOM" BECK, Chairman 

; 

I __ ~</{t( 
I JODI .1J!ONES, Secretary ,. 

970306LG.SM1 




